[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Statutory Licensing Committee
10 July 2019
Time

10.00 am

Public Meeting?

YES

Venue

Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre

Type of meeting

Licensing

Membership
Chair
Vice-chair

Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Lab)
Cllr Obaida Ahmed (Lab)

Labour

Conservative

Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Greg Brackenridge
Cllr Keith Inston
Cllr Anwen Muston
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Milkinderpal Jaspal
Cllr Asha Mattu
Cllr Dr Paul John Birch J.P.

Cllr Jane Stevenson
Cllr Jonathan Crofts

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Donna Cope, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01902 554452 Email: donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 555046

Please take note of the protocol for filming and recording of, and use of social media in, meetings, copies
of which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of previous meeting (Pages 5 - 8)

4

Matters arising

5

Minutes - 20 March 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 9 - 12)

6

Minutes - 21 March 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 13 - 14)

7

Minutes - 25 March 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 15 - 20)

8

Minutes - 27 March 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 21 - 26)

9

Minutes - 2 April 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 27 - 32)

10

Minutes - 17 April 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 33 - 36)

11

Minutes - 18 April 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 37 - 44)

12

Minutes - 14 May 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 45 - 50)

13

Minutes - 20 May 2019 - Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee (Pages 51 - 56)

14

Review of Decision Making 2018 - 2019 (Pages 57 - 78)
[To approve a proposed decision making process and proposed delegations in
relation to category 3 decision making powers to the Director of City Environment]

Agenda

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Statutory Licensing
Committee
Minutes - 20 March 2019
Attendance
Members of the Statutory Licensing Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Rita Potter (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Greg Brackenridge
Cllr Anwen Muston
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Celia Hibbert
Cllr Jacqueline Sweetman
Cllr Wendy Thompson

Employees
Chris Howell
Michelle James
William Humphries
Veronica Simpson
Sarah Hardwick
Donna Cope

Licensing Manager
Licensing Policy Manager
Service Lead - Compliance
Compliance Officer
Senior Solicitor
Democratic Services Officer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Councillors John Rowley, Keith Inston, Jane
Stevenson and Milkinder Jaspal.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Minutes of previous meeting
Resolved:

Page 3

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

4

That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 28 November
2018 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.
Matters arising
There were no matters arising.

5

Licensing Sub-Committee - 15 November 2018 - Minutes
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 15
November 2018 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

6

Licensing Sub-Committee - 6 December 2018 - Minutes
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 6
December 2018 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

7

Licensing Sub-Committee - 27 December 2018 - Minutes
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 27
December 2018 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

8

Licensing Sub-Committee - 30 January 2019 - Minutes
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 30 January
2019 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.

9

Review of Fees and Charges for Licensing Act and Gambling Act 2019/2020
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, presented a report asking Members to:
1. Note the non-discretionary fees and charges set by statute in relation to the
Licensing Act 2003.
2. Approve the fees and charges in relation to the Gambling Act 2005 with effect
from 1 April 2019 over which the Council has fee setting powers.
3. Note other fees and charges for permits set by the Secretary of State in
relation to the Gambling Act 2005 over which the Council has no local control.
Resolved:
That Members of the Licensing Committee:
1. Noted the non-discretionary fees and charges set by statute in relation to the
Licensing Act 2003.
2. Approved the fees and charges in relation to the Gambling Act 2005 with
effect from 1 April 2019 over which the Council has fee setting powers.
3. Noted other fees and charges for permits set by the Secretary of State in
relation to the Gambling Act 2005 over which the Council has no local control.

Page 4

Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 5

Minutes

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 5

Statutory Licensing SubCommittee
Minutes - 20 March 2019
Attendance
Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Wendy Thompson

Employees
Michelle James
Sarah Hardwick
Donna Cope
Kirsty Tuffin

Licensing Policy Manager
Senior Solicitor
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services Officer

Responsible Authories
Sgt Steph Reynolds

West Midlands Police

Page 7

Wednesday, 20 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from the applicant, Dean Martin Allwood.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Exclusion of press and public
Resolved:
That, in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Act relating to any individual.

4

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Personal Licence in respect of Mr Dean
Martin Allwood
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed.
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, outlined the report regarding an
application for a Personal Licence, which had been circulated to all parties in
advance of the meeting.
The Licensing Policy Manager reported that since the agenda had been published, a
written statement had been submitted by the Applicant, Dean Martin Allwood. This
had been published as supplementary information and copies had been sent to all
relevant parties.
The Chair invited West Midlands Police to present their application. Sgt Steph
Reynolds did so as per appendix 6 of the report.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question West Midlands
Police in relation to her submission. Sgt Steph Reynolds provided responses to
questions asked.
The Police was afforded the opportunity to make a closing statement.
Sgt Steph Reynolds did so.
All parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and Democratic Support Officers,
withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out in full by the Solicitor.

Page 8

Wednesday, 20 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
The Sub-Committee considered written submissions from the Applicant and heard
from West Midlands Police.
In the circumstances and in accordance with Section 120 of the Licensing Act 2003
the Licensing Sub-Committee decided to refuse the application for a personal licence
as it was considered appropriate for the promotion of crime prevention objective.
The decision could be appealed to the Magistrates Court within 21 days from receipt
of the decision. In the event an appeal was lodged and dismissed by the Court the
Council would apply for its costs in defending the appeal.

Page 9

Minutes
Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 6

Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Minutes - 21 March 2019
Attendance
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Rita Potter

Employees
Sarah Hardwick
Donna Cope
Kirst Tuffin
Michelle James

Senior Solicitor
Democratic Service Officer
Democratic Service Officer
Licensing Manager

Responsible Authorities
Sgt Steph Reynolds
William Humphries

Premises Licence Applicant
Heath Thomas

West Midlands Police
Service Lead (Compliance)

Harrison Clark Rickerbys Limited – Solicitor

Page 11

Thursday, 21 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Elaine Moreton, a representative for
Licensing Authority and Debra Craner, representative for Environmental Health.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest submitted.

3

Licensing Act 2003 –Application for a Premises Licence in respect of The Harp,
Walsall Street, Wolverhampton, WV1 3LP
An application for a Premises Licence in respect of The Harp Inn, Walsall Street,
Eastfield, Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV1 3LP was considered following
representations received from West Midlands Police, Environmental Health and The
Licensing Authority.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed.
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, provided an outline of the application.
She explained that since the agenda had been published both West Midlands Police
and Heath Thomas, Solicitor representing the Applicant, Orville Hines, had submitted
additional information for the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider.
Heath Thomas confirmed the report to be correct.
The Chair asked all parties if they were happy to accept the supplementary
documentation as there had been little time to consider the information provided.
Heath Thomas explained that although the supplementary documents were
submitted within the Licensing Hearing procedure deadline, his client and West
Midlands Police would like an adjournment to allow sufficient time to for them to
consider all the information submitted. He explained that it would be unfair to his
client, as a signed witness statement had been submitted to West Midlands Police
and they needed time to assess the new evidence. An adjournment would also allow
West Midlands Police time to gather the additional information that he had requested
from them.
Sgt Stephanie Reynolds, West Midlands Police, confirmed that Heath Thomas’s
statement was true and stated that she would need up to four weeks to assess the
new evidence.
The Sub-Committee agreed to adjourn the Hearing in the interest of fairness and to
ensure a decision would be based on all the evidence provided.
Resolved:
1.
All parties confirmed they had no objections to the request and the SubCommittee agreed to adjourn the hearing until Wednesday 17 April 2019 at
10am.

Page 12

Thursday, 21 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 7

Statutory Licensing SubCommittee
Minutes - 25 March 2019
Attendance
Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Keith Inston

Premises Licence Holder:
Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran

Applicant:
Paul Dosanjh
Dianne Slack

Service Lead, Trading Standards
District Officer, Trading Standards

Responsible Authorities
Elaine Moreton
Parpinder Singh

Section Leader Licensing
Senior Public Health Specialist, Public Health

Officers:
Michelle James
Richard Phillips
Donna Cope

Licensing Policy Manager
Solicitor
Democratic Services Officer

Page 13

Monday, 25 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Amy Baker, Health Improvement Officer, Public
Health, and Sgt Steph Reynolds, West Midlands Police.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect
of Transilvania Shop, 67 Merridale Street West, Wolverhampton, WV3 0RJ
An application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect of Transilvania Shop,
67 Merridale Street West, Wolverhampton, WV3 0RJ, had been received from
Trading Standards.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed.
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, provided an outline of the application.
Paul Dosanjh, Service Lead, Trading Standards (applicant), confirmed that the
summary was accurate.
The Chair invited Trading Standards to present their application. Paul Dosanjh,
Service Lead, did so as per Appendix 3 of the report.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the applicant in
relation to his submission. Paul Dosanjh, Service Lead, provided responses to
questions asked.
The Chair invited Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran, Premises Licence Holder, to make
representations. Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran stated the following:






She had not understood the warning in 2016 as she had been on holiday;
She had purchased illicit cigarettes from car boots and sold them from the
premises;
She had not sought to make money from the cigarettes directly, but it was to
encourage customers to make further purchases once in the premises;
The shop had been robbed at knifepoint which had lost her staff and made the
business harder to run;
She was sorry for her conduct.

The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Premises
Licence Holder in relation to her submission. Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran,
Premises Licence Holder, provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited the Licensing Authority to make representations. Mrs Elaine
Moreton did so as per Appendix 5 of the report.

Page 14

Monday, 25 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chair invited all parties present to question the Licensing Authority in relation to
its submission. Mrs Moreton provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited Public Health to make representations. Parpinder Singh did so as
per Appendix 6 of the report.
The Chair invited all parties present to question Public Health in relation to its
submission. Parpinder Singh provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
Paul Dosanjh, Trading Standards, made a closing statement.
All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic Services
Officers, withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the
matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out in full by the Solicitor.
Resolved:
Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee had considered all written
evidence and listened carefully to all representations made by persons who had
spoken at the hearing. They had considered all the evidence presented and had
found the following facts:
They heard from the applicant that:
1. On 16 November 2016, following two separate receipts of intelligence that
illicit cigarettes and tobacco were being sold from the premises (the subject of
this review), Trading Standards visited the premises, accompanied by a
Tobacco search dog. During the visit, Trading Standards officers discovered
and seized a large quantity of counterfeit and non-duty paid tobacco products.
They were told that to knowingly keep or allow to be kept on relevant premises
goods which were imported without duty paid or which had otherwise been
unlawfully imported was an offence under section 144 of the Licensing Act
2003. It had been emphasised that mere possession of counterfeit products or
illicit tobacco was an offence;
2. Responsibility under the Licensing Act lay with Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran,
as PLH and DPS;
3. The PLH and DPS had previously been given a written warning from Trading
Standards in relation to counterfeit cigarettes which had been discovered by
West Midlands Police in an unrelated visit in 2016;
4. The aforementioned conduct was serious criminal activity and therefore the
applicant requested revocation of the licence in line with the guidance under
s182 of the 2003 Act at 11.27 which states that the sale of contraband or
counterfeit tobacco was activity that should be considered particularly
seriously; and
5. Additionally – the sale of illicit tobacco contributes to the shadow economy,
undermines the City’s public health activity and drives down the cost of
tobacco.

Page 15

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

They heard from Miss Mihaela Adriana Epuran, as PLH and DPS that:
1. She had previously not understood the warning in 2016 as she had been on
holiday in Romania;
2. She accepted that she had been purchasing illicit cigarettes from car boots
and sold them from the premises;
3. That she had not sought to make money from the cigarettes directly but it was
to encourage customers to make further purchases once in the premises;
4. She had been at risk of losing her apartment in Greece;
5. The shop had been robbed at knifepoint which had lost her staff and made the
business harder to run; and
6. She apologised for her conduct.
They had taken account of the written submissions from West Midlands Police that:
1. The Police Authority supported the application of Trading Standards under the
Crime and Disorder licensing objective.
They heard from Mrs Elaine Moreton, Licensing Authority as responsible authority
that:
1. The Authority supported the application of Trading Standards;
2. There had been a disregard for the law and failure of management at the
premises to uphold the licensing objectives;
3. Public safety issues existed as a result of the criminal activity; and
4. Revocation of the premises licence was appropriate.
They heard from Public Health that:
1. They supported the application of Trading Standards; and
2. The criminal activity did not promote public health objectives relating to
smoking for a number of reasons including the public health risk from toxins
within the illicit cigarettes and the selling of cheap cigarettes undermines the
Government’s pricing strategy to reduce the take up of smoking.
The Sub-Committee could take such steps as it considered appropriate for the
promotion of the Licensing Objectives.
Paragraphs 11.27 and 11.28 of the revised Guidance under s182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 provides premises that have been used for the criminal activity of the sale
or storage of smuggled tobacco should be treated particularly seriously, and where
reviews arise and it is determined that the prevention of crime and disorder licensing
objective is being undermined through the premises being used to further crime, it is
expected that revocation of the premises licence should be seriously considered,
even in the first instance.
The Sub-Committee were satisfied that criminal activity had taken place at the
premises and that the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective was being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes. Further they were
satisfied that the activity did not promote the public safety licensing objective.

Page 16

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Based upon the evidence presented and having regard to the application,
representations made, guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
and the Council’s own licensing policy, the Sub-Committee had on the balance of
probabilities, found that in order to promote the prevention of crime and disorder and
public safety licensing objectives the premises licence of Transilvania Shop t/a The
Romanian Shop should be revoked in accordance with Section 52 of the Licensing
Act 2003.
This action was considered appropriate and proportionate action for the promotion of
the crime and disorder and public safety licensing objectives.
Written notice of the determination would be given to the holder of the licence, the
applicant, and any other person who made relevant representations.
An appeal may be made against the decision by the applicant, the holder of the
Premises Licence or any other person who made a relevant representation to the
application, within 21 days from the day on which notice of the decision was given.

Page 17

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 8

Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Minutes - 27 March 2019
Attendance
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Wendy Thompson
Cllr Rita Potter

Review Applicant
Sgt Steph Reynolds

West Midlands Police

Employees
Elizabeth Gregg
Leonie Woodward
Donna Cope
Kirsty Tuffin

Senior Licensing Officer
Lead Lawyer
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services Officer

Premises Licence Holder
Mac Kainth
Simeon Greene
Rakesh Kainth
Amrisha Parathalingam

Premises Licence Holder
Co-Owner of Society
Designated Premises Supervisor
Barrister on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder

Page 19

Wednesday, 27 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Exclusion of press and public
Resolved:
That, in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business as
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information falling within paragraph 7 of
Schedule 12A to the Act.

4

Licensing Act 2003 - Application for an Expedited Summary Review of a
Premises Licence in respect of Society, Townwell Fold, Wolverhampton WV1
4LB
An application for an expedited summary review of a Premises Licence in respect of
Society, Townwell Fold, Wolverhampton WV1 4LB, had been
received from West Midlands Police.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed. All
parties confirmed that they understood the procedure.
Elizabeth Gregg, Senior Licensing Officer, provided an outline of the application.
West Midlands Police confirmed that the summary was accurate.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the report content.
No questions were asked.
The Chair invited West Midlands Police to present their application.
Sgt Steph Reynolds, West Midlands Police, stated the grounds for review as per
Appendix 3 of the restricted report and requested that the premises licence be
suspended.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Review
applicant in relation to its representation.
Amrisha Parathalingam, Barrister representing Mac Kainth, Premises Licence
Holder, asked Sgt Steph Reynolds that if conditions were agreed would she change
her request from a suspension of the licence to a modification of the licence.

Page 20

Wednesday, 27 March 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Sub-Committee agreed to a short adjournment to allow Sgt Steph Reynolds
sufficient time to review the proposed conditions.
The Sub-Committee meeting was adjourned at 15:02.
The Sub-committee meeting re-adjourned at 3:17.
Sgt Steph Reynolds informed the Sub-committee that West Midlands Police were still
seeking to suspend the Licence due to the on-going investigation.
The Chair invited the Premises Licence Holder to make representations. Amrisha
Parathalingam made representations.
The Chair invited all parties present to question Amrisha Parathalingam in relation to
her submission.
Amrisha Parathalingam, Mac Kainth, Simeon Greene, Co-owner of Society, and
Rakesh Kainth, the current DPS of Society, provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
Amrisha Parathalingam presented a summary on behalf of the Premises Licence
Holder.
Sgt Steph Reynolds presented a summary on behalf of West Midlands Police.
All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic Services
Officers, withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the
matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out in full by the Solicitor.
Resolved:
An Application had been received from the West Midlands Police on 26 March 2019
for an expedited review of the Premises Licence in respect of Society, Townwell
Fold, Wolverhampton WV1 4LB.
The Chief of Police had given a certificate under Section 53A (1) (b) of the Licensing
Act 2003 (the Act), stating that in their opinion the premises were associated with
serious crime and disorder and had requested that interim steps be applied to the
premises licence pending a full review hearing.

The Licensing Sub-Committee have considered all information presented both
written and oral.
The Licensing Sub-Committee have heard from the applicant (West Midlands Police)
that:

Page 21

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1. The PLH of Society had contacted WMP in January 2019 to inform them of the
event to be hosted on Saturday 23 March 2019 between 22:00 and 04:00.
WMP advised the PLH that additional security measures would need to be
implemented to ensure all licensing objectives were upheld. WMP requested
that:
• That at least 6 door staff would be required for up to 100 guests, if over that
then to liaise with WMP.
• All plastic cups, no bottles.
• Strict search policy, wands and knife arch – if available, but minimum of
wands, thorough person search and bag search.
• Further search as detailed above if patrons exit and re-enter
• As the party was an invite only event, to provide a list of invited persons
• To ensure CCTV is working in all areas covering the party just before the
event.
2.

The PLH had confirmed with WMP that there would be 8 door staff as there
would be 150-200 guests attending, that each guest would be searched and
wands in place. All drinks would be sold in plastic cups except for VIP quests.
They also confirmed that the smoking area was not accessible by anyone as it
was fenced and gated off.

3.

At 02:59hrs on Sunday 24 March 2019 the WMP were called via link radio to a
large disorder at the premises involving 50 plus people, and a possible
stabbing. During the disorder one individual was stabbed in the torso in the
smoking area of the premises.

4.

When WMP arrived at the premises there were only 5 door staff. A search of
the smoking area was conducted once everyone had vacated the premises
whereby 2 knives were found.

5.

The PLH and management were present on the day and did nothing to follow
up the WMP additional security measures knowing that it was a high-risk
event.

6.

These failings could have leaded to a fatality.

7.

WMP recommend suspension of the premises licence pending the outcome of
the final review hearing.

The Licensing Sub-Committee have heard from Amrisha Parathalingam, Barrister,
representing the Premises Licence Holder that:
1.

The security from Eagle Security were at fault for failing to act as they were
briefed to do.

2.

The PLH accept their failings and proposes the following conditions:
• A knife arch to be implemented within 7 days.
• Suspend future events until proposed conditions are applied.
• Employ a council recommended security firm.
• ID scanners to be in place within 7 days.

Page 22

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

•
•
•
•

A security ratio of one SIA to 50 guests. Six SIA minimum per event.
Secure the smoking area with a mesh gate within 7 days.
An hourly door staff count by the premises.
A four-step security procedure at all events: initial pat down, pockets
emptied into trays, no liquids over 100ml, knife arch and then final pat
down.
• One female SIA prescent.
3.

The premises have always co-operated with the police.

4.

The premises have operated for two and a half years without incident.

5.

Six security were paid for not eight as WMP had requested due to
management oversight.

6.

WMP attended the premises prior to the incident and saw no problems.

7.

The Sub-Committee should consider the premises good history of the
premises.
The Act and Home office Guidance state that the tests to determine the kinds of
conduct that amount to serious crime are set out in section 81(2) and (3) (a) and (b)
of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000. These tests include conduct
which constitutes an offence for which a person who is 21 years of age or over with
no previous convictions could reasonably be expected to be sentenced to
imprisonment for 3 years or more; and which involves the use of violence.
The LSC have received the Certificate from the West Midlands Police and they have
received confirmation at the hearing today that serious crime and or disorder have
occurred on the premises.
The Sub-Committee are satisfied that a serious crime has occurred at the premises.
They are further satisfied that serious disorder has occurred on the premises.
Serious disorder is to be given its plain ordinary meaning.
Based upon the evidence presented, consideration has been given as to whether it is
necessary to take interim steps pending determination of the review (s53C LA 2003).
The LSC are satisfied that interim steps are necessary. In accordance with Section
53B (3) (d) of the Licensing Act 2003, the decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee is
to suspend the premises licence pending the full review hearing.

Page 23

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 9

Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Minutes - 2 April 2019
Attendance
Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Wendy Thompson
Cllr Rita Potter

Premises Licence Holder
Ed Passey
Joanna Lake
Donna Gracey
Mathew Phipps

Punch Taverns Limited
Punch Taverns Limited
Punch Taverns Limited
Solicitor on behalf of the Premises Licence Holder

Applicant
Stephanie Swann

West Midlands Immigration Enforcement (Home Office)

Responsible Authorities
Sgt Steph Reynolds

West Midlands Police

Officers
Michelle James
Leonie Woodward
Donna Cope
Kirsty Tuffin

Licensing Policy Manager
Lead Lawyer
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services Officer

Page 25

Tuesday, 2 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Chris Howell, Licensing Manager and
Christian Gregory, Regional Business Manager for Punch Taverns Limited.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest submitted.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect
of The Swan Hotel, 17 Lower Street, Wolverhampton, WV6 9AA
An application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect of The Swan Hotel, 17
Lower Street, Wolverhampton, WV6 9AA, had been received from West Midlands
Immigration Enforcement (Home Office) on 6 February 2019.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the review hearing procedure to
be followed.
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, provided an outline of the application.
Stephanie Swann, Immigration Officer, West Midlands Immigration Enforcement,
(Home Office), confirmed that the summary was accurate.
The Chair invited West Midlands Immigration Enforcement to present their
application.
Stephanie Swann, Immigration Officer, did so as per Appendix 3 of the report. She
stated that an intelligence led operation on 11 December 2018 had discovered that a
member of staff at The Swan Hotel did not have the right to work in the UK. The
worker was found to have been working for the company for 3 months on £200 a
week, cash in hand, working 5-6 hours a day. She advised that this would be below
minimum wage.
The Immigration Officer requested revocation of the premises licence and if
revocation was not deemed appropriate, then she requested that a number of
conditions were added to the licence. The conditions requested were as follows:
 Removal of the DPS;
 Suspension of the Premises Licence whilst a new DPS was appointed;
 Right to work checks be carried out on all employees before employment;
 All documentation regarding these checks would be kept (hard copy or digital)
and must be available on demand to any Responsible Authority when
requested.
The Immigration Officer advised the Sub-Committee that a fine of 15,000 pounds had
been served upon the PLH by the Civil Penalty Team.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the applicant in
relation to her submission. Stephanie Swann, Immigration Officer, provided
responses to questions asked.

Page 26

Tuesday, 2 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager advised the Sub-Committee that the
condition requesting that right to work checks were made before employment as
suggested by the Home Office could not be added as it would replicate existing
legislation.
The Chair invited Matthew Phipps, Solicitor representing the Premises Licence
Holder, to make representations. Mr Phipps stated the following:






Punch Taverns were the Premises Licence Holder (PLH). The tenant, Russel
Moreton, rented the premises from them and had his own company called
Spirit Pubs Wolverhampton Ltd.
The fine of 15,000 pounds from the Civil Penalty team had now been reduced
to 7,000 pound and had not been issued to Punch Taverns Limited but to
Spirit Pubs Wolverhampton Ltd.
Punch Taverns currently had 1,300 pubs in the UK and this was the first
review the PLH had received from Immigration Enforcement.
Punch Taverns would consider removing Russel Moreton’s tenancy
agreement if the Sub-Committee deemed it necessary, but Punch Taverns did
not have this view.
That the worker found to have no right to work in the UK had been working at
the company since the Summer, for roughly 6 months and received £330 a
week before tax.

The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Solicitor
representing the Premises Licence Holder, in relation to his submission. Matthew
Phipps provided responses to questions asked.

The Sub-Committee adjourned at 11.45 hours.
The Hearing reconvened at 11.55 hours.

The Chair invited West Midlands Police to make their representations.
Sgt Steph Reynolds did so as per appendix 4 of the report. She advised the SubCommittee that WMP were satisfied with the evidence that illegal activity had
occurred at the premises and that without the intelligence being given to the Home
Office the situation would still be on-going; therefore, WMP were seeking to revoke
the Licence.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question West Midlands
Police, in relation to her submission. Sgt Steph Reynolds provided responses to
questions asked.
The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
Sgt Steph Reynolds, Matthew Phipps, representing the Premises Licence Holder and
Stephanie Swann, West Midlands Immigration Enforcement, made closing
statements.
All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic

Page 27

Minutes
Page 3 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Services Officers withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to
determine the matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out in full by Leonie Woodward,
Lead Lawyer Litigation.
Resolved:
An Application was made by the Home Office (West Midlands Immigration
Enforcement) on 6 February 2019 for a review of the Premises Licence in respect of
The Swan Hotel, 17 Lower Street, Wolverhampton WV6 9AA, on the grounds that
actions of the premises undermine the prevention of crime and disorder Licensing
Objective. Representations were received from the West Midlands Police and the
Licensing Authority as Responsible Authorities.
At the hearing to review the premises licence, members of the Licensing SubCommittee considered all written evidence and listened carefully to all
representations made by persons who have spoken at this hearing.
They considered all the evidence presented and found the following facts:
They heard from Representatives of the Home Office, the applicant:
1. Their role in immigration enforcement;
2. Details of their visit of 11 December 2018; that 4 people, including the owner
of the premises were present and one interviewed;
3. That they arrested and interviewed one member of staff, who was found not to
have the right to work in the UK;
4. That the matter was then passed to their Civil Penalty Team and a penalty of
£15,000 was issued against Spirit Pubs Wolverhampton Ltd, of which Mr
Moreton is the sole Director;
5. That revocation of the licence was appropriate;
6. That if not minded to revoke, a number of conditions were suggested to be
added to the licence;
7. That employing illegal immigrants has damaging social & economic
consequences for the UK, under-cutting British workers and businesses
operating within the law, participating in tax evasion and exploiting migrant
workers, which in turn allows the UK to still be an attractive place for illegal
migrants.
They heard from Mr Phipps, on behalf of Punch Tavern, the Licence Holder:
1. The relationship between Punch Tavern and their tenants
2. That the Civil Penalty was against Spirit Pubs Wolverhampton Ltd, tenant of
Punch Tavern, not Punch Tavern itself;
3. That Punch Tavern has some 1,300 pubs across the UK, and that this was the
first occasion they have had immigration issues;
4. That Punch Tavern take this issue very seriously, shown by the fact that two
members of their legal team were present at the hearing today, and that they
have considered forfeiting Mr Morton’s tenancy;

Page 28

Minutes
Page 4 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5. That the Financial Penalty had been reduced from £15,000 to £10,000 then
£7,000, showing cooperation with the Immigration Services;
6. That Mr Moreton had asked for the worker’s passport and had been provided
with a UK provisional driving licence and British bank cards;
7. That the worker had been employed by the pub since the summer, and in
December, Mr Moreton was still awaiting information from his Accountants for
confirmation of the worker’s taxation status; no evidence was provided that Mr
Moreton had chased for this information or immigration information;
8. That all employees were paid cash and had payslips, although no payslips
were provided to the Committee; this particular worker received £330 per
week before tax, and the accounts department deducted the employee’s tax
directly from this amount, giving a net pay of £200 per week for 6 days’ work,
7 hours per day;
9. That an application to change the DPS was received the day following the
Home Office visit to the premises, ie on 12 December 2018;
10. That an external firm was now instructed to make the rights to work checks for
all employees going forward; current employees were in the process of being
reviewed; no evidence was provided that staff would not be employed in the
future before checks had been completed;
11. That Punch Tavern would need to go through their board to include
immigration checks requirements within their tenancy / licence agreement and
spot checks, process which would take some time to be completed;
12. That although the Police and Licensing Authority supported the Home Office
application, neither provided other issues, such as anti-social behaviour,
concerning these premises and no representations were received from
residents or other LA departments;
13. That they agreed something had gone wrong, but taking everything into
account, this should not be a case of revocation of the licence.
They heard from West Midlands Police that:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

The police authority supports the Home Office application;
It was clear to them the law had been breached;
That Mr Moreton, as an experienced pub owner, was aware of the legislation;
That additional conditions would only be duplication of the law;
That this breach had only been highlighted due to an anonymous tip-off,
without which the situation would probably be continuing;
6. That they would seek revocation of the licence as no reasonable explanation
had been heard.
The Licensing Authority was not present but had provided a statement as part of the
report.
The Sub-Committee may take such steps as it considers appropriate for the
promotion of the Licensing Objectives.
Paragraphs 11.27 and 11.28 of the revised Guidance under s182 of the Licensing
Act 2003 provides that, premises that have been used for criminal activity, here the
employment of illegal immigrants, when it is determined that the prevention of crime
and disorder licensing objective is being undermined through the premises being

Page 29

Minutes
Page 5 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

used to further crime, it is expected that revocation of the premises licence should be
seriously considered, even in the first instance.
The Sub-Committee were satisfied that criminal activity has taken place at the
premises and that the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective was being
undermined through the premises being used to further crime.
Based upon the evidence presented and having regard to the application,
representations made, guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
and the Council’s own licensing policy, the Sub-Committee have on the balance of
probabilities, found that in order to promote the prevention of crime and disorder the
premises licence of The Swan Hotel should be revoked in accordance with Section
52 of the Licensing Act 2003.
This action was considered appropriate and proportionate for the promotion of the
Crime & Disorder licensing objectives.
Written notice of the determination would be given to the holder of the licence, the
applicant, and any other person who made relevant representations.
An appeal may be made against the decision by the applicant, the holder of the
Premises Licence or any other person who made a relevant representation to the
application, within 21 days from the day on which notice of the decision was given.

Page 30

Minutes
Page 6 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 10

Statutory Licensing SubCommittee
Minutes - 17 April 2019
Attendance
Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Rita Potter

Premises Licence Applicant
Heath Thomas
Orville Hines

Solicitor
Applicant

Employees
Sarah Hardwick
Donna Cope
Elizabeth Gregg
Fern Lovell

Senior Solicitor
Democratic Service Officer
Senior Licensing Officer
Law Student (Observing)

Responsible Authorities
Sgt Steph Reynolds
Debra Craner
Elaine Moreton

West Midlands Police
Environmental Health
Licensing Authority

Page 31

Wednesday, 17 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Premises Licence in respect of The
Harp, Walsall Street, Wolverhampton, WV1 3LP
An application for a Premises Licence in respect of The Harp Inn, Walsall Street,
Eastfield, Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV1 3LP was considered following
representations received from West Midlands Police, Environmental Health and The
Licensing Authority.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed.
Elizabeth Gregg, Senior Licensing Officer, provided an outline of the application.
Heath Thomas, Solicitor representing the Applicant, Orville Hines, confirmed that the
summary was accurate.
The Chair invited the Applicant to present the application. Heath Thomas, Solicitor
representing the Applicant, stated that Sgt Stephanie Reynolds, West Midlands
Police, wanted to address the Sub-Committee first.
Sgt Reynolds addressed the Sub-Committee and requested that the Hearing be
adjourned. She explained that Mr Thomas had requested a substantial amount of
evidence which she had not been able to provide due to work commitments and staff
shortages. She stated that Mr Thomas had agreed to adjourn the Hearing for one
week, but due to the large amount of evidence requested, Sgt Reynolds advised that
one week would not be sufficient.
The Chair afforded Mr Heath Thomas the opportunity to express his views on the
request for an adjournment.
Mr Thomas sympathised with Sgt Reynolds but stated it would be unfair on his client
to adjourn the Hearing. He stated that Sgt Reynolds had been given sufficient time to
provide the evidence requested and confirmed that his client did not wish to adjourn.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to express their views on the
request for an adjournment.
All parties did so.
The Sub-Committee adjourned at 10:25 hours.
The Hearing reconvened at 10:45 hours.

Page 32

Wednesday, 17 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chair confirmed that the decision of the Sub-Committee was to adjourn the
Hearing and a new date was proposed. All parties failed to agree on the proposed
date so further discussions took place.
The Sub-Committee adjourned at 10:50 hours.
The Hearing reconvened at 11:00 hours.
The Sub-Committee agreed to adjourn the Hearing in the interest of fairness and to
ensure a decision would be based on all the evidence provided.
Resolved:
1. All parties confirmed they had no objections to the request and the SubCommittee agreed to adjourn the hearing until Tuesday 14 May 2019 at 10am.

Page 33

Minutes
Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 11

Statutory Licensing SubCommittee
Minutes - 18 April 2019
Attendance
Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Wendy Thompson
Cllr Zee Russell

Premises Licence Holder
Jake Flanagan
Simeon Greene
Rakesh Kainth

Licensing Consultant
Shareholder of Society
Designated Premises Supervisor

Review Applicant
Sgt Steph Reynolds
James Rankin

West Midlands Police
Barrister for West Midlands Police

Responsible Authorities
Elaine Moreton

Licensing Authority

Officers
Elizabeth Gregg
Dave Abel
Donna Cope
Deb Craner
Ferne Lovell

Senior Licensing Officer
Solicitor
Democratic Services Officer
Licensing Section Leader (Observing)
Law Student (Observing)

Page 35

Thursday, 18 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 36

Minutes
Page 2 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rita Potter.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect
of Society, Townwell Fold, Wolverhampton WV1 4LD
An application for a Review of a Premises Licence in respect of Society, Townwell
Fold, Wolverhampton WV1 4LD, had been received from West Midlands Police.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed. All
parties confirmed that they understood the procedure.
Elizabeth Gregg, Senior Licensing Officer, provided an outline of the application. She
reported that since the agenda had been published, supplementary information had
been received from West Midlands Police and Jake Flanagan, Licensing Consultant
representing the Premises Licence Holder.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the report content.
James Rankin, Barrister representing West Midlands Police, queried the
supplementary information that had been submitted by Mr Flanagan as it had not
been seen by West Midlands Police.
Mr Flanagan confirmed that the additional documents submitted on behalf of his
client were photographs of the outside of the premises and a google map print out.
The Chair asked all parties if they agreed to accept the supplementary documents.
All parties agreed.
James Rankin, Barrister representing West Midlands Police, stated that the
supplementary information that had been submitted by his client was a list of
proposed licence conditions. He advised that the conditions had since been
amended and asked the Sub-Committee to accept the updated document.
The Sub-Committee agreed to the request and copies of all supplementary
documents were distributed to all parties by Donna Cope, Democratic Services
Officer.
The Chair invited West Midlands Police to present their application.
James Rankin, Barrister representing West Midlands Police, questioned
correspondence that had been received from Mr Flanagan prior to the Hearing,
alleging that the paperwork for the expedited review had not been served correctly by
West Midlands Police.

Page 37

Thursday, 18 April 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

In response to this, Mr Flanagan confirmed that he wished to withdraw the allegation
and continue with the Hearing.
The Chair again invited West Midlands Police to present their application.
Mr Rankin stated the grounds for review as per Appendix 2 of the report. He advised
the Sub-Committee that prior to the Hearing a number of proposed licence conditions
had been presented to Mr Flanagan and his client and that West Midlands Police
were satisfied that the additional conditions would promote the four licensing
objectives.
Mr Rankin outlined the proposed conditions and stated that the Licensing Consultant
and his client had agreed to all of them, except for a condition that would allow the
Police to veto future events.
The Chair sought legal clarification on this, and a discussion took place regarding
whether adding the condition to the licence would be proportionate to the Licensing
Objectives.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the West Midlands
Police in relation to its representation.
Mr Rankin and Sgt Steph Reynolds provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited the Premises Licence Holder to make representations. Jake
Flanagan, Licensing Consultant representing the Premises Licence Holder, stated
the following:
1. An incident had occurred at a private party held at the club.
2. A fight had taken place in the smoking area outside the club.
3. The premises disagreed with the Police version of events and disputed that a
stabbing had occurred and that knives had been found on the premises.
4. The design of the exit had contributed to the problems.
5. The venue had now sacked the Manager on duty at the time of the incident;
had reviewed its policies and had replaced its SIA Accredited Security Firm.
6. The venue had now implemented search training and would no longer be
holding private parties.
7. The premises had a good working relationship with the police and the disorder
was an isolated incident.
8. The Premises did not agree that a proposed condition allowing the Police to
veto future events was reasonable or proportionate.
The Chair invited all parties present to question Jake Flanagan in relation to his
submission.
Jake Flanagan and Simeon Greene, shareholder of the premises, provided
responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited the Licensing Authority to make representations. Mrs Elaine
Moreton did so as per Appendix 4 of the report.

Page 38

Minutes
Page 4 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chair invited all parties present to question the Licensing Authority in relation to
its submission. Mrs Moreton provided responses to questions asked.
The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
Jake Flanagan and James Rankin made closing statements on behalf of their clients.
All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic Services
Officers, withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the
matter.
All interested parties were invited back into the meeting and it was agreed by all that
the Interim Steps currently in place would be removed.
The Chair outlined the decision of the Sub-Committee and the decision was read out
in full by David Abel, Solicitor.
Resolved
An application had been made by West Midlands Police for a review of the Premises
Licence of Society, Townwell Fold, Wolverhampton WV1 4LD.
At the hearing to review the Premises Licence, the Licensing Sub-Committee
listened carefully to all representations made by the persons that spoke at the
hearing and considered all the evidence presented.
The Sub-Committee heard from West Midlands Police that:
1. A serious incident of Crime and Disorder had occurred in the early hours of
Sunday 24th March 2019 at Society Night-Club, where a male patron had been
stabbed and a fight had broken out between patrons.
2. The Police had considered the event to be high risk as it was a private
birthday party for a known gang member. West Midlands Police had
requested appropriate conditions which had not been implemented by the
venue. These included having eight SIA Registered door staff when only six
were booked and the use of metal search wands which did not take place.
3. Police Officers attended but had to withdraw immediately due to large scale
disorder. The injured man was taken away in an ambulance and the Club was
closed by the Police. Three knives were found either at the premises or
adjacent to the premises.
4. Inside the venue containers of Nitrous Oxide were found strewn across the
floor.
5. The incident could have been avoided if the requests from West Midlands
Police had been adhered to.
6. The venue did not uphold the Licensing objectives in that those attending
were not searched, people were allowed entry without invitation and
insufficient door staff were employed.
The Licensing Sub-Committee heard from Elaine Morton on behalf of the Licensing
Authority, a Responsible Authority, that they supported the Police application and
that Public Safety must not be compromised.

Page 39

Minutes
Page 5 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Licensing Sub-Committee heard from Mr Flanagan, Licensing Consultant
representing Society that:
1. An incident had occurred at a private party held at the club.
2. A fight had taken place in the smoking area outside the club.
3. The premises disagreed with the Police version of events and disputed that a
stabbing actually occurred; the amount of people attending the venue; and
that knives were actually found in relation to the premises.
4. The design of the exit had contributed to the problems.
5. The venue had now sacked the Manager on duty at the time of the incident;
had reviewed its policies and had replaced its SIA Accredited Security Firm.
They had now implemented search training and would no longer be holding
private parties.
6. The Premises did not agree that a proposed condition allowing the Police to
veto future events was reasonable or proportionate as the mischief
complained of was dealt with by other proposed conditions and may interfere
with the commercial interests of the venue.
The Licensing Sub-Committee were satisfied on the evidence that:
1. A fight and a stabbing had occurred at the venue and that Nitrous Oxide
cannisters were found at the premises.
2. There had been serious management failings at the premises.
3. The recommendations of West Midlands Police had not been implemented as
agreed.
4. The Licensing Objectives had not been upheld.
Therefore, the Decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee was, as stated under
section 6.5 (a) at page 5 of the Report, to Modify the Conditions of the Premises
Licence as follows:
1. An SIA Registered Security Firm to be employed for all events.
a) A minimum of six Door Staff, one of whom will be female, to be employed
at any event and a ratio of 1:50 to be applied thereafter.
b) All Door Staff to wear High Visibility Jackets.
c) The Risk Assessment for each event to be shared, in full, with the security
team for that night, including any correspondence / requests by any
Responsible Authority and the conditions on the premises licence.
d) A written briefing to all door staff to be completed only by the DPS/PLH
and will be documented and signed by all parties.
e) A documented hourly check that all security were present and in the
correct areas conducting their duties as instructed will take place.
f) All bags will be searched on entry to the venue.
2. A knife arch will be in place and used at all events as part of a condition of
entry for anyone entering the venue.
3. A four- step security protocol will take place as a condition of entry for anyone
entering the venue:
a) All pockets will be emptied

Page 40

Minutes
Page 6 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

b) Patrons will be required to walk through the knife arch
c) There will be a full body pat- down from head to toe of anyone entering the
venue
d) A metal detecting wand will be used to scan from head to toe anyone
entering the venue
4. An ID Scanner will be implemented and used as a condition of entry for
anyone entering the venue.
5. The Smoking area will be fully secured whilst the premises is closed to ensure
that no items can be secreted.
6. There will be a full sweep of the premises both inside and out within one to
two hours prior to opening to ensure that no weapons or illegal contra-brand is
present.
7. CCTV is to cover all areas were the public have access, save for the toilets,
and is to cover all areas where the door staff conduct the search procedure.
8. All communication regarding arrangements for events to be held at the venue
with any Responsible Authority, and with particular reference to West
Midlands Police, shall be undertaken by the DPS/PLH only, who will then be
responsible for ensuring all actions and that the licensing objectives are
upheld.
9. Any reasonable recommendations made by West Midlands Police with regard
to any event at the premises that will satisfy the four licensing objectives shall
be adopted and complied with by the DPS/PLH.
10. When a high-risk event is proposed to take place at the premises, West
Midlands Police will have a right of veto over any such event should they
decide that by holding the event the PLH/DPS will not be promoting the
Licensing Objectives. The premises will notify West Midlands Police at least
twenty-one days prior to any event taking place, and if no objections or veto
are received from the Police within ten working days from the notification
being given to the Police, then the event will be deemed suitable to take place
subject to no new information coming to the attention of the Police. Any Police
recommendations or veto must be communicated to the PLH/DPS at least ten
working days prior to the event. If the Police recommendation or veto is that
the event must not take place because of a serious risk to the Crime and
Disorder or Public Safety Licensing Objectives, then a Police Officer of the
rank of Inspector or above from West Midlands Police will provide a written
explanation of the reasons for the veto at the same time as the
recommendation is made or as soon as is reasonably practicable thereafter.
This condition is made at the suggestion of and with the full agreement of
West Midlands Police.
The Licensing Sub-Committee imposed these conditions as they believe them to be
necessary and proportionate for the upholding of the licensing objectives.
Therefore, based upon the above and having regard to the Application and relevant
representations made, the Licensing Sub-Committee have decided to Modify the
Conditions of the Licence as stated in accordance with Section 53C of the Licensing
Act 2003.

Page 41

Minutes
Page 7 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

An Appeal may be made to the Magistrates Court against the decision, by the
Applicant, the Holder of the Premises Licence, or any other person who has made a
Relevant Representation, within 21 days from the date of receipt of written notice of
this decision.
Representations have been invited in relation to the Interim Steps currently in place.
The premises Licence Holder and West Midlands Police have stated that the
Suspension of the Premises Licence which was previously imposed should be lifted.
Section 53D of the Licensing Act 2003 makes provision for the Review of the Interim
Steps that have been taken by the relevant Licensing Authority under Section 53B,
before a decision under Section 53C comes into effect. Having considered whether
Interim Steps were appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives and any
relevant representations, the Licensing Authority have determined that the current
Interim Steps should be lifted.
In accordance with Section 53D (5) of the Licensing Act 2003, the Interim Steps put
in place following the Hearing on 27th March 2019 will cease to have effect from the
coming into effect of the decision of Review. A decision under Section 53D may also
be appealed to the Magistrates Court.

Page 42

Minutes
Page 8 of 8

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 12

Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Minutes - 14 May 2019
Attendance
Members of the Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Zee Russell
Cllr Rita Potter

Premises Licence Applicant
Orville Hines

Premises Licence Applicant

Heath Thomas

Solicitor

Responsible Authorities
Sgt Steph Reynolds

West Midlands Police

Elaine Moreton

Licensing Authority

Debra Craner

Environmental Health

Employees
Leonie Woodward

Lead Lawyer

Donna Cope

Democratic Services Officer

Kirsty Tuffin

Democratic Services Officer

Michelle James

Licensing Policy Manager

Page 43

Tuesday, 14 May 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
There were no apologies for absence submitted.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Premises Licence in respect of The
Harp, Walsall Street, Wolverhampton, WV1 3LP
An application for a Premises Licence in respect of The Harp Inn, Walsall Street,
Eastfield, Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV1 3LP was considered following
representations received from West Midlands Police, Environmental Health and The
Licensing Authority.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed. All
parties confirmed that they understood the procedure.
Michelle James, Licensing Policy Manager, provided an outline of the application.
She reported that since the agenda had been published, supplementary information
had been received from West Midlands Police and the Applicant. She advised that
Appendix 4a – Police Representation and Appendix 9 – Applicant Information had
been made exempt under Paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as they contained information relating to an individual.
Mr Heath Thomas, Solicitor representing the Applicant, Orville Hines, confirmed the
report to be correct.
The Chair invited the Applicant to present their application.
Mr Heath Thomas did so on behalf of his client Orville Hines. He advised the
committee that Mr Hines held another Premises Licence in a different Licensing
Authority and that there had been no issues at that premises. He stated that Mr
Hines had held the Premises Licence for The Harp between 1999 and 2014. But
during the period of 2014 to 2018, Mr Hines had not been the Premises Licence
Holder or the Designated Premises Supervisor as he had leased the premises to
someone else.

Heath Thomas proposed a number of conditions be added to the Premises Licence:
 That the individuals Orville Hines had leased the property to during the period
of 2014-2018 would have no part in licensable activities,
 That the premises would install and maintain CCTV up to police standards,
 A minimum of two SIA licensed door staff be on duty at the premises from
22:00 when operating beyond midnight,
 No noise or vibrations would emanate from the premises,
 Doors and windows to remain closed

Page 44

Tuesday, 14 May 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]







Consumption of alcohol outside the front of the premises would not be
permitted,
Signs displayed outside the property that advised customers to park sensibly
and leave the premises quietly,
Any patrons drinking and/or smoking outside be monitored by a member of
staff,
A direct number for the Premises Licence Holder/DPS be given to local
residents and businesses,
A dress code and drug policy would be implemented.

Heath Thomas advised the Sub-Committee that exempt items would be discussed.
The Press and Public were excluded from the meeting at 10:40am.
Heath Thomas continued to outline his client’s application with reference to the
additional information as per Appendix 9 and West Midlands Police supplementary
information as per Appendix 4a.

The Sub-Committee adjourned for a break at 12:45pm.
The Sub-Committee re-adjourned at 1:35pm.

The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Applicant in
relation to its representation.
Heath Thomas and Orville Hines provided responses to questions asked by
Committee Members, West Midlands Police, Licensing Authority and Environmental
Health. Heath Thomas made a recommendation that a time limited licence be
granted to allow his client to prove himself a fit and proper person.
The Chair invited West Midlands Police to make representations. Sgt Steph
Reynolds did so. She advised that West Midlands Police opposed the conditions
proposed by the applicant and raised concerns on a time limited licence being
granted as suggested by Heath Thomas.
The Chair invited all parties present to question West Midlands Police in relation to
its submission. Sgt Steph Reynolds provided responses to questions asked by
Committee Members, Heath Thomas and, Licensing Authority.
The Chair invited the Licensing Authority to make representations. Mrs Elaine
Moreton, Section Leader Licensing, did so as per Appendix 6.
The Chair invited all parties present to question the Licensing Authority in relation to
its submission. Mrs Moreton provided responses to questions asked by committee
members and West Midlands Police.

The Sub-Committee Hearing re-opened to the Press and Public at 3:55pm.

Page 45

Minutes
Page 3 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chair invited Environmental Health to make representations. Debra Craner,
Section Leader for Environmental Health, did so as per Appendix 5.
The Chair invited all parties present to question Environmental Health in relation to
its submission. Debra Craner provided responses to questions asked by committee
members, West Midlands Police and Licensing Authority.

The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
All parties present made a closing statement.
Sgt Steph Reynolds withdrew from the meeting at 4:35pm.
All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic Services
Officers, withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the
matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out by the Senior Solicitor. The
Solicitor advised Heath Thomas that the full written decision would be sent out within
5 working days.

Resolved:
The Sub-Committee had regard to both the written and oral evidence that had been
presented and attached appropriate weight.
Having considered the views of all concerned, the Sub-Committee decided that the
application for a premises licence should be granted, subject to the following
conditions, for a period of 12 months:
1. The provision of licensable activities (recorded music, late night refreshment
and sale of alcohol) will take place:



Sunday to Thursday: 11:00 to 23:00
Friday and Saturday: 11:00 to 24:00

2. The premises will be closed to members of the public 30 minutes thereafter.
It is considered by the Licensing Sub-Committee that the following conditions should
be attached in support of the prevention of public nuisance, crime and disorder and
public safety licensing objectives:
1. All staff to receive training and refresher training every 6 months on their
responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003. The training is to be documented
and made available to an Authorised Officer of a Responsible Authority upon
request.

Page 46

Minutes
Page 4 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2. The following persons shall take no part in the management or operation of the
premises or the provision of any licensable activity and will at no time be
present on the premises:
 Garnett McClean
 Isaac Green
 Afiya Dalila
 Asata Dalila
3. A comprehensive CCTV system shall be installed and maintained at the
premises, as per the minimum requirements of the West Midlands Police
Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered, enabling frontal
identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system
shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall
be stored for a minimum period of 31 days, with date and time stamping.
Viewing of the recordings shall be made available immediately upon the
request of West Midlands Police or any Authorised Officer throughout the entire
retention (31 day) period.
4. A minimum of one staff member from the premises, who is conversant with the
operation of the CCTV system, shall be on the premises at all times when the
premises is open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police Officer or
Authorised Council Officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the
absolute minimum of delay when requested.
5. An incident log shall be kept at the premises at all times and made available on
request to an Authorised Officer of the City Council or West Midlands Police. It
must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
a. All crimes reported to the venue
b. All ejections of patrons
c. All complaints received concerning crime and disorder
d. All incident of disorder
e. All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (date, time, types and
quantities, names)
f. Any faults in the CCTV system, including date and time they were rectified
g. Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
h. Any visit by a Relevant Authority or Emergency Service
6. The capacity of the premises shall be restricted to 110 persons at all times or
such other figure as contained within the premises fire risk assessment.
7. On Fridays and Saturdays, a minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall
be on duty at the premises from 22:00 until close. Door supervisors will be
engaged on other occasions subject to individual risk assessment.
8. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment,
shall emanate from the premises, nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises, which gives rise to nuisance.

Page 47

Minutes
Page 5 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

9. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed any time when regulated
entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress of
persons.
10. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises.
11. Notice shall be prominently displayed at all entrances to the premises
reminding customers of the need to park sensibly and to respect the needs of
local residents.
12. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect
the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.
13. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.
14. The PHL shall ensure that any patrons drinking and / or smoking outside the
premises do so in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to
ensure that there is no public nuisance.
15. A direct telephone number for the Premises Licence Holder and for the DPS at
the premises shall be publicly available at all times the premises are open. This
telephone number is to be make available to residents and businesses in the
vicinity.
16. During the hours of operation of the premises, the Licence Holder shall ensure
sufficient measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or
accumulating from customers in the area immediately outside the premises.
17. Challenge 25 proof of age shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification will be recognised photographic identification
cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS
Hologram.
18. Prior to opening for trade, the Premises Licence Holder will have in place
policies for the following:
 Dispersal policy
 Drugs policy
 Dress code
19. A smoking area protected from the elements will be fitted at the back of the
premises and customers wishing to smoke or vape will be encouraged to use it.
This was in accordance with sections 18 and 26 of the Licensing Act 2003.
The full decision notice outlining the reasons for the decision of the Sub-Committee
and listing conditions have now been served upon all parties.
All parties have a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of receipt of
the said notice.

Page 48

Minutes
Page 6 of 6

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 13

Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Minutes - 20 May 2019
Attendance
Cllr Alan Bolshaw (Chair)
Cllr Rita Potter
Cllr Zee Russell
Premises Licence Applicant:
Pavel Slavon Hristov

Responsible Authorities
Sgt Steph Reynolds
Chris Howell
Parpinder Singh
Dianne Slack
Paul Dosanjh
Arron Ellison

West Midlands Police
Licensing Authority
Public Health
District Officer Trading Standards
Service Lead Trading Standards
Compliance Officer

Other Persons
Councillor Obaida Ahmed

Employees
Kirsty Tuffin
Elizabeth Gregg
David Abel
Donna Cope

Democratic Services Officer
Senior Licensing Manager
Solicitor
Democratic Services Officer

Page 49

Monday, 20 May 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Claire Darke, Councillor Lynne Moran,
Councillor Craig Collingswood and Elaine Moreton, Section Leader Licensing.

2

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

3

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for a Premises Licence in respect of Fresh
Food & Drink Ltd, 43 Newhampton Road West, Wolverhampton, WV6 0RY

An application for a Premises Licence in respect of Fresh Food and Drink Ltd, 43
Newhampton Road West, Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV6 0RY was
considered following representations received from West Midlands Police, Trading
Standards, Public Health, Licensing Authority and Other Persons.
The Chair led round-table introductions and outlined the procedure to be followed. All
parties confirmed that they understood the procedure.
Elizabeth Gregg, Senior Licensing Officer, provided an outline of the application. She
advised that the Additional West Midlands Police Information found at Appendix 4a
and Trading Standards Representation found at Appendix 5 had were exempt under
Paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as they contained
information relating to an individual.
Mr Pavel Hristov, the Applicant, confirmed the report to be correct.
The Chair invited the Applicant to present their application.
Mr Pavel Hristov did so as per Appendix 1. He stated he had previous experience of
working within an off-licence in Birmingham and that he would like to operate a
Bulgarian shop in Wolverhampton.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Applicant in
relation to its representation.
Mr Pavel Hristov provided responses to questions asked by Committee Members,
Trading Standards, Licensing Authority and West Midlands Police.
The Chair invited Trading Standards to make representations.
Dianne Slack, District Officer Trading Standards, did so as per Appendix 5.
The Press and Public were excluded from the meeting.
Dianne Slack continued to outline representations made by Trading Standards with
reference to exempt information at Appendix 5.

Page 50

Monday, 20 May 2019
Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question Trading Standards
on their submission.
Dianne Slack provided answers to questions asked by the Applicant, Licensing
Authority and Committee Members.
The Chair invited the Licensing Authority to make representations.
Chris Howell, Licensing Manager, did so as per Appendix 7. He stated that the
Premises was within the Cumulative Impact Zone and that the Applicant had not
considered the Licensing Objectives.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question the Licensing
Authority in relation to its submission. Chris Howell provided responses to questions
asked by Committee Members, Public Health and the Applicant.
The Sub-Committee Hearing re-opened to the Press and Public.
The Chair invited West Midlands Police to make representations.
Sgt Steph Reynolds did so. She advised that the area surrounding the premises had
a history of issues relating to street drinking, littering and drug use and that in order
to address this, other premises within the area no longer sold single cans or high
percentage alcohol.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question West Midlands
Police in relation to its submission. Sgt Steph Reynolds provided responses to
questions asked by Committee Members.
The Chair invited Public Health to make representation.
Parpinder Singh, Senior Public Health Specialist, did so as per Appendix 6.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question Public Health on its
submission. Parpinder Singh provided responses to questions asked by Committee
Members.
The Chair invited Other Persons to make representation.
Councillor Obaida Ahmed, on behalf of constituents within her ward, did so as per
Appendix 8. She stated that another outlet selling alcohol would add to the on-going
issues in the area and that children and elderly residents in would be at risk.
The Chair afforded all parties present the opportunity to question Other Persons.
Councillor Obaida Ahmed, on behalf of Other Persons, provided responses to
questions asked by Committee Members.
The Chair invited all parties present to make their final address.
All parties present, with the exception of Public Health, made a final statement.

Page 51

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

All interested parties, with the exception of the Solicitor and the Democratic Services
Officers, withdrew from the meeting to enable the Sub-Committee to determine the
matter.
All interested parties were invited back to the meeting and the Chair advised them of
the decision of the Sub-Committee, which was read out by the Solicitor. The Solicitor
advised Mr Pavel Hristov, that the full written decision would be sent out within 5
working days.
Resolved:
The Licensing Sub-Committee had listened carefully to all of the Representations
made during the hearing and carefully had considered all the written evidence
presented to them.
The Sub-Committee heard from West Midlands Police that:
1. The Applicant had a history of being involved in the supply of illegal tobacco
and had provided a false address on the application form.
2. The Proposed hours were excessive and unjustified.
3. The Conditions proposed duplicate existing law.
4. The Applicant did not understand the Licensing objectives.
5. The Application did not rebut the presumption of the Cumulative Impact Zone
and should be refused.
The Sub-Committee heard from Trading Standards that:
1. A false statement had been given by the Applicant contrary to the provisions of
the Licensing Act 2003.
2. There were links to the illegal supply of tobacco which undermined the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder Licensing Objectives.
3. The Premises are located within the area of a Public Space Protection Order.
4. Trading Standards Officers carried out a test purchase at the premises on
Friday 17th May 2019 which revealed the sale of illegal tobacco at the shop.
The Sub-Committee heard from Public Health that:
1. The Premises is located within a Cumulative Impact Zone and that a Public
Space Protection Order is operative within that area.
2. There are 4 other licensed premises within the immediate area of the shop.
3. The sale of single cans and of high strength alcohol, confirmed by the Applicant
if the licence were to be granted, would increase the problems in the area and
contribute to Public Health issues.
The Sub-Committee heard from the Licensing Authority that:
1. The presumption of the refusal of a licence caused by the operation of the
Cumulative Impact Zone had not been rebutted or even considered by the
Application.

Page 52

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2. The Licensing objectives had not been considered effectively by the
Application.
The Sub-Committee heard from Councillor Ahmed representing constituents within
her ward, that:
1. There had been problems with Alcohol, Street Drinking and Anti-Social
Behaviour within the immediate area of the premises which would be increased
by serving alcohol within the hours proposed.
2. The good work achieved with existing premises regarding the sale of alcohol
would be undermined if the licence be granted as proposed.
3. Public Nuisance would be increased by the sale of alcohol as proposed.
The Sub-Committee heard from the Applicant that:
1. If the licence were to be granted it would not increase existing problems within
the area.
The Licensing Sub-Committee found that:
1. The Applicant had no understanding of the Licensing Objectives and had been
concerned to note that his focus had been solely on making a profit for the
business without taking the objectives into account.
2. He had no understanding of his application and of the proposed conditions, for
example, of how to operate the CCTV System.
3. He also had no understanding of the operation of the Cumulative Impact Zone
and did not rebut its presumption that a licence will not usually be granted
unless the Sub-Committee are persuaded otherwise.
The Sub-Committee had not been persuaded to depart from the requirements of the
Cumulative Impact Zone policy as the Applicant had not shown, either in the
proposed operating schedule or with supporting evidence that the issues of
Cumulative Impact would not be increased. The Application was therefore refused.
There is a Right of Appeal to the Local Magistrates Court available to the Applicant
or to anyone who has made a Representation and is aggrieved by the Licensing
Sub-Committees decision, within 21 days of being notified in writing of the SubCommittees decision.

Page 53

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 14

Statutory Licensing
Committee
10 July 2019
Report Title

Review of Decision Making 2018 - 2019

Wards affected

All

Accountable Director

Ross Cook, Director of City Environment

Originating service

Licensing Services

Accountable employee

Chris Howell
Tel
Email

Report to be/has been
considered by

Licensing Manager
01902 554554
Chris.Howell@wolverhampton.gov.uk

None

Recommendations for decision:
The Statutory Licensing Committee is recommended to:
1. Endorse and approve the proposals in section 2 of this report relating to category 2
decisions.
2. Endorse and approve the proposals in section 2 of this report relating to category 3
decisions.
3. Delegate category 3 decision making powers to the Director of City Environment.
4. Agree to receive further annual delegation update reports at the beginning of each
municipal year.
Recommendations for noting:
The Statutory Licensing Committee is asked to note:
1. The schedule attached at Appendix 1 to this report which includes further proposed
delegations from the Director of City Environment.

Page 55

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

2. The schedule of employee decisions for 2018 - 2019 attached at Appendix 2 to this
report in relation to the Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority.
3. The schedule of decisions for 2018 - 2019 attached at Appendix 3 to this report in
relation Magistrates and Crown Court appeals.

Page 56

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

1.0

Purpose of report

1.1

To seek the endorsement and approval of a proposed decision making process and the
proposed delegations in relation to category 3 decision making powers to the Director of
City Environment.

1.2

To draw Councillors’ attention to the delegations document attached at Appendix 1 which
includes proposed delegations from the Director of City Environment to employees within
Place.

2.0

Background

2.1

The Statutory Licensing Committee has responsibility for a wide range of licensing
functions. These relate principally to the issue of licences, permits, consents and their
enforcement.

2.2

Councillors will be most familiar with premises applications made under the Licensing Act
2003. However, there are other matters that are only occasionally brought to Councillors’
attention for consideration e.g. applications under the Gambling Act.

2.3

The licensing system is configured to allow the proper discharge of functions and
operates through the Statutory Licensing Committee either taking decisions themselves
or through the delegation of decisions to officers.

2.4

The aim of the delegation scheme is the achievement of a proper balance of
responsibilities to enable the service to be delivered in an efficient and effective manner.

2.5

The current Statutory Committee approval arrangements categorise decisions into three
categories. See table below.
Current decision making progress
Category Who takes the
decision?
1
Full Committee

2

Sub Committee

3

Delegated to Officers

Type of decision
Policy matters and those which have significant
political, financial implications including fees
and charges or service delivery issues
Contentious applications for new and existing
permissions/consents and licences to include
suspensions and licence revocations, where
appropriate and in accordance with agreed
policy/criteria responsibility for any function as
prescribed by statute
Determination of consents, permits,
registrations, licence applications and reviews,
to include contentious applications for new and
existing permissions/consents and licences,
where relevant and in accordance with agreed
policies/criteria

Page 57

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.0

Delegation of category 2 and 3 decisions

3.1

On 30 May 2012 the Licensing Committee considered a report on the review of decision
making.

3.2

This report set out a review process for officer delegations.

3.3

Licensing Services produced a policy document which included a list of current and
proposed delegation to officers for a range of decisions.

3.4

The Statutory Licensing Committee confirmed and endorsed category 2 and category 3
decisions and the continuation of the existing regime of officer delegations and approved
delegation of category 3 decisions, to the Strategic Director for Education and Enterprise.
This ensured the ongoing delivery of routine, non-contentious licensing functions in
accordance with agreed policies and procedures.

3.5

Councillors agreed that an updated delegation report be presented to the Statutory
Licensing Committee on an annual basis to the first meeting of the municipal year.

3.6

The Statutory Licensing Committee are asked to endorse and approve the delegation of
category 3 decision making to the Director of City Environment.

3.7

The delegations document attached at Appendix 1 has been updated throughout the year
and includes proposed delegations from the Director of City Environment to officers
within the Place directive.

3.8

Should Councillors agree with recommendations within this report the proposed
delegations document will be authorised by the Director of City Environment.

4.0

Legal implications

4.1

The Licensing Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000
Schedule 1 specifies a range of functions which are not to be an executive responsibility
and this includes licensing and registration functions.

4.2

The Statutory Licensing Committee has been appointed to exercise the Council’s
functions relating to the processing, determination and management of licensing. Specific
powers and duties are listed in the Council’s constitution and some can be delegated to
officers.

4.3

One of the main principles of the constitution is the need to be able to ascertain who is
responsible for any decision made by or on behalf of the Council and this is particularly
so for officer delegations which must be comprehensive.
[SH/21062019/A]

Page 58

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

5.0

Financial implications

5.1

The recommendations in the report are designed to enable efficient and effective
decision making processes. There are no direct financial implications arising from this
report.
[MK/27062019/V]

6.0

Equal implications

6.1

The agreement of criteria relating to officer decisions will be subject to equality analysis
to ensure the proposals are in accordance with the Council’s Equal Opportunities Policy
and the requirements of the Human Rights Act 1998.

7.0

Environmental implications

7.1

Many of the functions for which the Committee has responsibility have a bearing on
environmental issues.

8.0

Human resources implications

8.1

There are no human resources implications arising from this report.

9.0

Corporate Landlord implications

9.1

There are no Corporate Landlord implications arising from this report.

10.0

Schedule of background papers

10.1

Licensing Committee – 30 May 2012, 22 May 2013, 18 June 2014, 3 June 2015, 15 June
2016, 6 June 2017, 6 June 2018 - Review of decision making.

11.0

Appendices

11.1

Appendix 1 - Statutory Licensing Committee – Committee/Sub-Committee/Officer
Delegations

11.2

Appendix 2 - Licensing Authority as a Responsible Authority

11.3

Appendix 3 – Licensing Act 2003 appeals to the courts

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Statutory Licensing Committee – Committee/Sub-Committee/Officer Delegations

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Appendix 1

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence/Club Premises
Certificate – New/Variation Application/
Provisional Statement

Page 61

Premises Licence/Club Premises
Certificate – Review Application
Temporary Event Notice – Standard

No representations - Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Representations resolved by conditions
added to Licence – Licensing
Sub-Committee, endorse to negate hearing

Representations resolved by
conditions added to Licence –
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee,
endorse to negate hearing

Representations Not Resolved – Licensing
Sub-Committee
Licensing Sub-Committee

Representations Not Resolved –
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Acknowledge Receipt - Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Representations/Service of Counter Notice
– Licensing Sub-Committee
Temporary Event Notice - Standard
Agree hearing is not required where
TEN modified

No representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Section Leader Licensing, in consultation
with Chair or Vice Chair of Licensing
Committee

Licensing
Committee
06/06/2018

Acknowledge Receipt – Licensing
and Compliance Officer
Representations/Service of Counter
Notice – Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee
Section Leader Licensing, in
consultation with Chair or Vice Chair
of Statutory Licensing Committee

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Licensing Act 2003 continued/...
Section Leader Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Minor Variations – Grant/Reject
Applications in accordance with
Legislative Reform Orders 2009
Personal Licence - Application

Section Leader, Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Section Leader, Senior Licensing
and Compliance Officer, Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Page 62

Temporary Event Notice – Late

Designated Premises Supervisor –
Variation

Application Transfer Premises Licence/
Club Premises Certificate

No Representations - Licensing Officer
Representations – Licensing
Sub-Committee
No Representations – Licensing Officer
Representations – Licensing
Sub-Committee
No Representations – Licensing Officer
Representations – Licensing
Sub-Committee

Application for Interim Authority

No Representations – Licensing Officer
Representations – Licensing
Sub-Committee

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing
Representations – Statutory
Licensing Sub-Committee

Representations - Statutory
Licensing Sub-Committee

Representations - Statutory
Licensing Sub-Committee

Representations – Statutory
Licensing Sub-Committee

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Licensing Act 2003 continued/...
Decision to object when Local
Authority is a Consultee and not the
relevant authority considering the
application
Licensing Act 2003 Fees and Charges

Statement of Licensing Policy

Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Secretary of State (Subject to revisions
resulting from the Police Reform and
Social Responsibility Act 2011)
Full Council

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012
Licensing
Committee
06/06/2017

Section Leader, Licensing

Power to suspend Premises
Licence/Club Premises Certificate for
non payment of annual fee
To authorise Licensing Authority as a
Responsible Authority

Section Leader, Licensing

Mediate outcome of Appeal

Licensing Manager – Recommendations to
Chair

Licensing
Committee
06/06/2017

Authority to inspect premises to
evaluate compliance with the
requirements of the Act

Compliance Officer / District Officer /
Environmental Health Officer / Public
Protection

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Page 63

Decision on whether a complaint is
Irrelevant, Frivolous, Vexatious etc

Licensing Manager/Section Leader,
Licensing

Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing and Compliance Officer,
Licensing
Environmental Health Officer/District
Officer, Business Service

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Licensing Act 2003 continued/...
Authority to act as a Responsible
Authority and apply to the relevant
Licensing Authority for a review of a
Premises Licence or Club Premises
Certificate
Right of entry to investigate licensable
activities under the Licensing Act 2003

Section Leader, Licensing
Licensing Manager / Head of
Business Services

Licensing and Compliance Officer,
Licensing
Environmental Health Officer/District
Officer, Business Service

Page 64

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Gambling Act 2005
New/Variations/Provisional Statements
Applications

No Representations – Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Representations Not Withdrawn –
Licensing Sub-Committee
Transfer of Premises Licence

No Representations – Licensing Officer

No Representations – Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing
Representations Not Withdrawn –
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Page 65

Representations from Gambling
Commission –
Licensing Sub-Committee

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer
Representations from Gambling
Commission – Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee

Premises
Licence/Suspension/Revocation

Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Temporary Use Notice

No Representations – Section Leader,
Licensing

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Representations – Licensing
Sub-Committee

Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Representations - Statutory Licensing
Sub-Committee

Occasional Use Notice

No Representations – Officers

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

No Representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Authority to inspect premises to
evaluate compliance with the
requirements of the Act

Compliance Officer / District Officer /
Environmental Health Officer / Public
Protection

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Licensing and Compliance Officer,
Licensing
Environmental Health Officer/District
Officer, Business Service

Licence/Consent/Permit Type

Current Delegation(s)

Date of
Committee
Authorisation

Proposed Delegation(s)
2019 - 2020

Gambling Act 2005 continued/...
Application Club Gaming/Club Machine
Permit

No Representations – Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Representations Not Withdrawn –
Licensing Sub-Committee

No representations - Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing
Representations Not Withdrawn –
Statutory Licensing Sub-Committee

Section Leader, Licensing/Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Section Leader/Senior Licensing and
Compliance Officer/Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Alcohol Licensed Premises
Gaming Machine Permit – Notification

Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Licensing and Compliance Officer,
Licensing

Cancellation Licensed Premises Gaming Section Leader, Licensing/Licensing Officer
Machine Permits

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Section Leader/Senior Licensing and
Compliance Officer/Licensing and
Compliance Officer, Licensing

Small Society Lotteries
New/Renewal

Licensing Officer

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Licensing and Compliance Officer,
Licensing

Gambling Act Fees and Charges

Licensing Committee up to Maximum Limit
set by Secretary of State

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

Statutory Licensing Committee up to
maximum set by Secretary of State

Statement of Gambling Policy

Full Council

Licensing
Committee
30/05/2012

To authorise the Local Authority as a
responsible authority

Licensing Manager/Section Leader,
Licensing

Licensing
Committee
06/06/2017

Page 66

Cancellation of Club Gaming/
Club Machine Permit

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2
File Ref

Name of Premises

PRE1338

Chill Wine Bar Ltd

PRE1357

The York Hotel

Page 67

PRE324

The Outback

PRE358

Royal Oak

PRE1358

1st Choice

PRE1359

1883 Lounge

Address of Premises

New/
Variation/Review

4-6 High Street
Tettenhall
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV6 8QT
138 - 140 Tettenhall Road
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV6 0BQ
50 Queen Street
City Centre
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 3BJ
70 Compton Road
Wolverhampton
WV3 9PH
14 Cleveland Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 3HH
Starworks Venue
Frederick Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV2 4DU

Last Date For
Reps

CIZ

Reps Made

Date of
Hearing/
Mediation

Variation

03.05.2018

N

N

-

New

21.05.2018

N

N

-

Variation

10.04.2018

Y

N

-

Variation

13.04.2018

N

N

-

New

25.04.2018

N

N

New

26.04.2018

N

N

-

1
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2

PRE274

The Prince Albert

PRE1360

Heron Foods

PRE358

Royal Oak

Page 68

PRE1284

Punchline Brewery

PRE1361

Robinsons Butchers
Bistro & Delicatessen

PRE1277

The Parisian

Railway Street
City Centre
Wolverhampton
WV1 1LG
5 Raynor Parade
Raynor Road
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV10 9QY
70 Compton Road
WOLVERHAMPTON
WV3 9PH
Unit 13
New Enterprise Centre
Monmore Road
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 2TZ
18 High Street
Tettenhall
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV6 8QT
41 Queen Square
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 1TX

Variation

11.05.2018

Y

N

-

New

17.05.2018

N

N

-

Variation

22.05.2018

N

N

-

Variation

12.07.2018

N

N

-

New

14.06.2018

N

N

-

N

LSC
10.09.2018
granted with
amended
operating
schedule

Variation

30.07.2018

Y

2
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2

PRE1362

PRE1363

Page 69

PRE360

Tony's Delicatessen

Newstop

The Goal Post

PRE1364

Cave Lounge

PRE1365

International Mini
Market

PRE1366

Vaal & Vaal

19 Queen Square
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 1TQ
64 High Street
Wednesfield
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV11 1SZ

New

New

107 Waterloo Road
Whitmore Reans
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 4RB

Frederick Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV2 4DU
79A Willenhall Road
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 2HW
Unit 5-9
Attwoods Premises
Raglan Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands

13.07.2018

24.07.2018

Y

Y

N

Granted
with Police
mediation

Y

Mediation
with
Applicant
Agreed
LSC
25.07.2018
Conditions
added to
licence
reinstated
following
expedited
review
LSC
21.08.2018
granted with
conditions

Review

11.07.2018

N

Y

New

31.07.2018

N

Y

New

01.08.2018

N

Y

Application
Withdrawn

New

03.08.2018

N

N

-

3
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2
WV3 0SG

PRE1192

PRE38

Page 70

PRE507

PRE1367

PRE1368

PRE289

PRE1370

Gold Superstore:

Burleigh Mini Market:

The Stile

The Harp Inn

Supernewz

Dog & Gun

The Hangar

18 Marsh Lane Parade,
Wolverhampton, West
Midlands,
WV10 6RT
70 Burleigh Road,
Penn Fields,
Wolverhampton,
WV3 0HN
3 Harrow Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 4PB
Walsall Street,
Eastfield, Wolverhampton,
WV1 3LP
5 Market Way
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV14 0DR
Wrottesley Road
Wolverhampton
WV6 8SB
Pountney Street,
Wolverhampton, West
Midlands, WV2 4HX

Variation

13.09.2018

N

N

-

Review

19.09.2018

N

Y

LSC
16.10.2018
Revoked

Variation

18.09.2018

N

N

-

New

20.09.2018

N

Y

Withdrawn

New

27.09.2018

Y

Y

LSC
25.10.2018
Refused

Variation

02.10.2018

N

N

-

Y

Statutory
LSC
08.11.2018
Grant with
conditions

New

15.10.2018

N

4
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2

PRE1369

PRE1371

PRE1372

Arcane Games LTD,
City Centre Market,
Corner Of Snow
Hill/Cleveland
St/Temple St
Batas Supermarket:

Page 71

PRE312

Yates’s:

PRE1373

Blossoms Liquor +
Grind

PRE207

Masala Lounge;

PRE152

The Goose

PRE115

The Talisman

129 Salop Street, City Centre,
Wolverhampton, WV3 0RX

New

08.10.2018

Y

N

-

City Centre, Wolverhampton,
West Midlands, WV2 4AN

New

09.11.2018

N

N

-

130 Lime Street,
Wolverhampton, WV3 0EX

New

05.12.2018

N

N

-

Variation

20.11.2018

Y

N

-

New

10.01.2019

Y

N

-

34 Queen Square, City Centre,
Wolverhampton,
WV1 1TL
9A North Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 1RE
3 Lichfield Road
Wednesfield
Wolverhampton
WV11 1TW
32-36 Lichfield Street
Town Centre
Wolverhampton
WV1 1DN
Wildtree Avenue
Low Hill
Wolverhampton
WV10 8LL

Variation

11.01.2019

N

N

Mediation
with
Applicant
Agreed

Variation

04.01.2019

Y

N

-

Review

01.01.2019

N

Y

Statutory
LSC
27.01.2018
Revoked

5
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2

PRE111

Red Lion

PRE49

The Golden Lion

PRE1377

Page 72

PRE1376

Adams Pizza

The Harp

PRE1375

The Talisman

PRE1374

Pres Village Stores

PRE180

The Swan hotel

Amos Lane
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV11 1LE
Cannock Road
Wolverhampton
WV10 0RH
11 Stewart Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV2 4JW
Walsall Street
Eastfield
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 3LP
Wildtree Avenue
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV10 8LL
Unit 17; Moorfield Works
Upper Villiers Street
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV2 4NP
17 Lower Street
Tettenhall
Wolverhampton
WV6 9AA

Variation

17.01.2019

N

N

-

Variation

13.02.2019

N

N

-

New

05.03.2019

N

N

-

New

22.02.2019

N

Y

Statutory
LSC
14.05.2019
Granted
with time
limit &
conditions

New

21.01.2019

N

Y

Application
Withdrawn

New

18.01.2019

N

N

Granted
with Police
mediation

Y

Statutory
LSC
02.04.2019
Revoked

Review

06.02.2019

N

6
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2
Statutory
LSC
22.02.2019
Reinstated
with
conditions
and
amended
operating
schedule
Statutory
LSC
25.03.2019
Revoked

The Outback

50 Queen Street
City Centre
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV1 3BJ

Review

28.01.2019

Y

Y

PRE1258

Transilvania Shop;

67 Merridale Street West
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV3 0RJ

Review

29.01.2019

N

Y

PRE1383

Aldi Stores Limited

Broad Gauge Way,
Wolverhampton, WV10 0AZ

New

04.03.2019

N

N

Granted as
applied for

PRE1380

Wolverhampton
Wanderers Football
Club

Molineux Stadium, Waterloo
Road, Wolverhampton, WV1
4QR

New

06.03.2019

N

N

Granted
with Police
mediation

PRE1381

Hanka Bistro

10 Victoria Street, W-ton, WV1
3NP

New

13.03.2019

Y

N

PRE1382

Fresh Food & Drink
Ltd

43 Newhampton Road West,
Wolverhampton, WV6 0RY

New

22.03.2019

N

Y

PRE324

Page 73

Granted
with Police
mediation
Statutory
LSC
20.05.2019
Refused

7
$gc52fq24

EMPLOYEE DECISIONS 2018/2019
ELAINE MORETON

LICENSING ACT 2003

LICENSING AUTHORITY AS A RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY
Appendix 2

PRE1165

Society

PRE1379

Canalside

Townwell Fold, Wolverhampton

Page 74

Castlecroft Lane
Wolverhampton
West Midlands
WV3 8JU

Review

26.03.2019

Y

Y

Statutory
LSC
18.04.2019
Reinstated
with
additional
conditions

New

26.03.2019

N

N

Granted
with Police
mediation

8
$gc52fq24

PROTECT
2018/2019
LICENSING ACT 2003 APPEALS TO THE COURTS
Appendix 3
Date of
Appeal
Not
Applicable
To be
confirmed
To be
confirmed

Name
The Talisman; Wildtree Avenue,
Low Hill, Wolverhampton, WV10 8LL
Transilvania Shop, T/A the Romanian
Shop; 67 Merridale Street West,
Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV3
0RJ
The Swan Hotel; Lower Street,
Wolverhampton, West Midlands, WV6
9AA

Licence
Type

Council Decision

Outcome

Action by

PRE115

Revocation of licence

Appeal Withdrawn Each
Party Bare Own Costs

PRE1258

Revocation of licence

Pending

Statutory L.S.C.

PRE180

Revocation of licence

Pending

Statutory L.S.C.

Applicant

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

